
 

1 
 

Minutes 

Essex County Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 

November 8, 2023 

7:00 P.M. 

A regular meeting of the Essex County Planning Commission was held on November 8, 2023, at 

the Essex County School Board Office, Tappahannock, Virginia. 

Present: 

David Jones – Chairman 
Angelo Stevens – Vice Chairman 

Stephen Walters 

Jean Segar  

Trent Taliaferro 

Benjamin Scott Mundie 

  
Absent: 
Wright Andrews 
 

Also present: 

Brian Barnes – Zoning Administrator  

Kelly McKnight – Planning and Zoning Office Manager  

  

CALL TO ORDER 

David Jones, Chairman, called the regular meeting of the Planning Commission to order at 7:00 

pm. 

ROLL CALL 

Chairman Jones asked Ms. McKnight to call the roll. A quorum was met. 

MEETING AGENDA 

Chairman Jones asked if any changes needed to be made to the agenda. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Chairman Jones asked if there were any corrections or additions needed for the October 3, 

2023, minutes? Commissioner Taliaferro made a motion to approve the minutes as presented. 

Commissioner Mundie seconded the motion. AYES: 6 NAYES: 0 ABSENT: 1 

 

 



 

2 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 None 

PUBLIC HEARING 

None  

OLD BUSINESS 

Discuss issues with Agricultural and Forestry language in the Essex County Zoning Ordinance 

Presentation from Brian Barnes. Last month we decided how to proceed, and you directed 

county staff to come up with sample ideas from comparable counties not geographical but 

comparable in agricultural and scope. Isle of Wight and Surry Counties were used. Attached are 

the Isle of Wight and Surry County Agricultural Zoning language. 

 

 



 

3 
 

 



 

4 
 

  



 

5 
 

 

 



 

6 
 

 



 

7 
 

 



 

8 
 

 



 

9 
 

 



 

10 
 

 

 



 

11 
 

 



 

12 
 

 



 

13 
 

 



 

14 
 

 

 



 

15 
 

 

 

 



 

16 
 

 



 

17 
 

 



 

18 
 

 



 

19 
 

 



 

20 
 

 



 

21 
 

 



 

22 
 

 

 

 



 

23 
 

 



 

24 
 

 



 

25 
 

 



 

26 
 

 



 

27 
 

 



 

28 
 

 



 

29 
 

 



 

30 
 

 



 

31 
 

 



 

32 
 

 



 

33 
 

 



 

34 
 

 



 

35 
 

 



 

36 
 

 



 

37 
 

 



 

38 
 

 



 

39 
 

 



 

40 
 

 



 

41 
 

 



 

42 
 

 



 

43 
 

 



 

44 
 

 



 

45 
 

 



 

46 
 

 



 

47 
 

 



 

48 
 

 



 

49 
 

 



 

50 
 

 



 

51 
 

 



 

52 
 

 



 

53 
 

 



 

54 
 

 



 

55 
 

 



 

56 
 

 



 

57 
 

 



 

58 
 

 



 

59 
 

 



 

60 
 

 



 

61 
 

 



 

62 
 

 



 

63 
 

 



 

64 
 

 



 

65 
 

 



 

66 
 

 



 

67 
 

 



 

68 
 

 

 

 



 

69 
 

 

Brian Barnes stated that silviculture is permitted in almost every district.  Once thing that Mr. 

Barnes wanted to point out is most of the intensive districts do allow a lot of agricultural 



 

70 
 

districts by right.  Talking with Tim Smith we were contemplating that.  If you allow it in an 

industrial district, then it’s a whole lot intrusive then what else could go on in that industrial 

district. The dust, the noise of a combine coming through.  Surry county has limited agricultural.  

I summarized everything in the memo.  I included the attorney generals’ memos in the packet. 

Commissioner Walters stated that 1, 2, 3 down there are three basic requirements for 

regulating agricultural operations.  Can’t have a special use permit, can’t prohibit farming 

practices conducting in accordance with best practices.  And the laws and regulations.  That is a 

clause that you can insert in there.  You can require that they do best management practice. 

Chairman Jones stated that one of the catalysts that Mr. Bates came in because he put his corn 

in that someone approached him that it is residential, and our new zoning ordinance didn’t 

allow for agricultural because it was residential and then that flipped over to the right to farm 

act and then that became a little confusing.  

Brian Barnes agreed that it was confusing as well.  

Chairman Jones said we are talking about two different things.  Number one, a county can 

regulate agricultural farming in a residential zone and the right to farm act does not pertain to 

that because you can legally do that.  But we can’t do that in anything zoned agricultural.  

Number one Essex County can regulate farming, not that we want to, can legally regulate 

anything that is not in an agricultural zone, and I think that question has been answered.  I think 

Mr. Bates thought that we could not. 

Brian Barnes said that we have established that if it has and I believe it is ok to talk about it 

because that was a public issue and we talked about it publicly.  In that example it was zoned 

R1 or R2.  

Chairman Jones said that you can’t regulate that int the AG district.  Anybody can do it in a 

district that is not predominately agricultural. 

Commissioner Taliferro said don’t forget the zoning ordinance said that any non-conforming 

use can continue as it is. The grandfather clause. 

Brian Barnes said he comes to the county in the county office with 50 acres of timberland that I 

just had cut over that is zones R1, and I want to clear and grub it, do I need a conditional use 

permit?  The way the zoning ordinance is written now you do. 

Commissioner Walters said not only that it’s a conditional use permit you have to change the 

zoning. 

Chairman Jones said lets clearing up and let’s clean up some of the stuff that we messed up or 

we didn’t finish properly when we did the zoning ordinance.  Let’s make sure our language 

covers Mr. Bates or Mr. Mundie.  



 

71 
 

Commissioner Taliaferro one comment he would make on clearing a piece of land if you long on 

page 144 paragraph 3 a non-conforming use may be changed to the same or more restricted 

classification. 

Mr. Barnes said that covers it. 

Commissioner Mundie said so you can clear that timber and go from silviculture to agricultural. 

Mr. Barnes writes a letter to whoever complains about the zoning administrator’s 

determination.  

Chairman Jones said does the right to farm act pertain to all of them the answer to that is no. 

Number two if grandfathered in are they allowed to continue are they allowed to continue.  

The answer is yes but it is a little ambiguous with agricultural so I would like if we all think 

agricultural is where it should be then let’s add a sentence or add that says including 

agricultural, so we know that it is grandfathered.   

Commissioner Taliaferro said if he remembers being there then it is grandfathered. 

Commissioner Walters said current use doesn’t imply a building, it is just what you are using it 

for.  

Mr. Barnes said that people are really using this and reading it.   

Commissioner Walters said maybe if we break it out into two, one is land use and the other 

building. 

Chairman Jones said you can just add when ever a non-conforming use of land comma including 

agricultural, or buildings have been changed. 

Commissioner Walters I would say “for example” an agricultural or business.   

Commissioner Taliaferro said you might want to be careful when trying to get very specific then 

you potentially leave out something. 

Chairman Jones just wants to make sure whoever is reading ad interpreting the book for the 

county understands that when the Planning Commissioner re wrote it wanted agricultural 

included in the non-conforming use.  

Commissioner Walters asked Mr. Taliaferro how they came up with the definition for 

agricultural intensive. 

Commissioner Taliaferro said that the animal issue, intensive and confinement issue needs to 

be cleared up. 

Commissioner Mundie said that Mr. Bates made a good point.  He was talking about interest in 

building a shed for his animals to shelter during inclement weather.  Under the current 

definition you can interpret that to be intensive because of the confinement piece even though 



 

72 
 

20 animals having a loafing shed to get out of the weather would not necessarily satisfy the 

definition of a CAFO as defined by the people that he was going to go through to get the 

permits to build it. 

Mr. Barnes said that Essex County needs to be careful how they would allow CAFO’s if they are 

ever proposed. 

Mr. Walters asked if we still have support from Berkley. 

Mr. Barnes said yes, we do. 

Mr. Barnes said that when you take it to hearing you try to be thorough. 

Commissioner Mundie asked if Mr. Barnes had any engagement from the AG and Forestry 

Committee. 

Mr. Barnes said that he went to their last meeting, and he gave an update on what the Planning 

Commission is working on. Mr. Barnes said he would like suggestions on having a joint meeting 

with the AG and Forestry Committee or they could write down some recommendations on 

what they would like to see.   

Chairman Jones said that there are three issues that we have been going over and battling that 

we don’t have straight right one.  Number 1 is what other district to we want to add agricultural 

use too, animal confinement issue want to clean it up and then the agricultural intensive 

definition.  Do we want to start with Brian on what he thinks is a way to clean it up? We will 

then have some recommendations.   

Commissioner Walters said do we want to task him with the wording of the non-conforming 

use. 

Chairman Jones said yes.  Zoning should be written so if the County wants to happen it gives 

them an avenue for it to happen or if there is something they don’t want to happen it won’t 

happen.  

Chairman Jones went over what needs to be done. Number 1 added language in the non-

conforming section, what other district do we want to add agricultural uses, animal 

confinement, and agricultural intensive definition. 

Commissioner Mundie said with these specific issues would this not be the time to go through 

the AG and forestry first. 

Chairman Jones said no because e doesn’t want it to come across as them writing the ordinance 

for us. 

Mr. Barnes said he can be the staff person seeking input from them. You don’t want to be seen 

as telling them what to do. 



 

73 
 

Chairman Jones said we gave Brian a directive and he can ask to advise on what they are 

thinking, 

Mr. Barnes said that he have had two meetings with Charles Davis and they are trying to come 

up with one lot which would be a one lot subdivision.  They have to have a primary reserve 

septic site for that.  They are waiting on the soil work.  They will bring to you as a one lot.  There 

are a few other projects out there that people are thinking about it. 

Chairman Jones we are working how to proceed money wise and who with. 

Mr. Barnes said that he has some ideas that he can put in the comp plan that are not there 

now. 

Chairman Jones said that he and Brian went over each part of the comp plan.  He is going to 

look over what the recommendations are. We will have a meeting on each chapter and then 

send each to a public hearing.  One chapter a month and the public will be able to comment 

each month.   

Mr. Barnes said one other issue is that solar is not mentioned in the comp plan.  The way the 

law is written now any kind of utility scale project they have to come to the planning 

commission has to hold a hearing called 2232 review which is review of substantial 

conformance with the comprehensive plan. 

Mr. Walters brought his certificates from the Planning Commission and BZA classes. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

None 

 

ADJOURN 

Having no further discussion, a motion to adjourn was made and seconded. AYES: 6, NAYES: 0, 

ABSENT:1 

 

 

_____________________________ 

David Jones, Chairman 

   

 


